
 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Tuesday, August 18, 2015, 7:00 PM 

The Forum, 100 State Street 
 

1. Roll Call 

 

2. Minutes of the July 21, 2015 Meeting 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

4. Devin Hanson – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-32 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to allow a storage 

shed behind the residential structure located at 928 Bluff Street. 

 

5. Imperial Builders - Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-23 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to restore and 

replace the knee wall on the second story porch of a residential structure located at 348 Euclid 

Avenue. 

 

6. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last Meeting 

 

7. Committee Reports 

 A. Education & Outreach Committee 

 B. Grant Writing Committee 

 C.  Site Visit Committee 

 

8. Adjournment 
 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, notify the Planning Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM 
the day before the meeting. 
    
Approved: Alex Morganroth, Planner 
   August 4, 2015 
 

**  Please note that upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 

disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please 

contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511. 
 



 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
Tuesday, July 21, 2015, 7:00 PM 

The Forum, 100 State Street 

 
1. Roll Call 

 Commissioner Blazer called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. 

 Commissioners Blazer, Vollmer, Johnson, Joyce, Kelly, Vollmer, and Kaye were present. 
 Commissioner Truesdale was absent. 

 
2. Minutes of the June 16, 2015 Meeting 

Commissioner Blazer moved to approve the Minutes. Commissioner Kaye seconded the 

motion. The motion passed unanimously (4-0). 
 

3. Public Comments: None 

 

4. Jeffery Henderson – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-23 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to restore 
and replace exterior masonry on the front porch of the residential structure located at 816 

Wisconsin Avenue. 
 
Planner Alex Morganroth read the staff report and recommendations. 

 
Commissioner Blazer invited the applicant to speak about the project. Mr. Henderson 

stated that he wanted to clarify that the windowsills will not be being replaced, and that the 
concrete apron or skirt at the bottom of the window will be replaced. Commissioner Joyce 
thanked Mr. Henderson for fixing up his house and stated that he has a beautiful home. 

Councilwoman Kelly asked the applicant if the roof was fixable. Mr. Henderson explained 
that the contractor did an adequate job, but that some of the tiles didn’t line up so they 

would have to be removed and re-laid.  
 
Commissioner Vater made a motion to approve the requested COA as written, subject to 

the conditions recommended by staff. Commissioner Vollmer seconded the motion. The 
motion carried unanimously (6-0). 

 
 



5. Devin Hanson – Certificate of Appropriateness 

COA-2015-24 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to construct 

a storage shed behind the residential structure located at 928 Bluff Street. 
 

 
Mr. Alex Morganroth read the staff report and recommendations. 
 

Councilwoman Kelly asked how long they have lived in the house. Commissioner Vater 
stated that she would also like to know how long they have lived there. Mr. Morganroth 

responded that he wasn’t sure exactly how long, but likely less than a year. Commissioner 
Vater then asked if they were aware of the meeting tonight, to which Mr. Morganroth 
responded yes. Mr. Morganroth said that he encouraged them to attend but did not expect 

them to. Commissioner Vollmer then stated that the property gave him concern as it didn’t 
conform architecturally to the surrounding area. He said that if the shed is approved it 

would have to be on the criteria that it is not visible from the street. 
 
Commissioner Blazer asked Mr. Morganroth if the shed required a building permit, to 

which Mr. Morganroth replied that the applicant did apply for and received a permit. 
Commissioner Blazer then asked if the shed was prefabricated off-site, to which Mr. 

Morganroth responded yes. Mr. Morganroth went on to explain that the applicant came in 
and was unaware her house was in a historic district. She stated that the delivery truck was 
coming that afternoon and that it would be extremely costly to have it sent back and 

delivered a different day. Commissioner Johnson asked why there seem to be so many 
people that are unaware that they are in a historic district. She then stated that she cannot 

support the shed. 
 
Commissioner Blazer asked Mr. Morganroth if they can get fined or some kind of violation 

for doing the work without a COA. Commissioner Blazer then stated that there were two 
questions: Is the shed appropriate for the property? And should the applicant get 

reprimanded for constructing it without a COA.  Commissioner Vater asked if the property 
already has a garage, to which Mr. Morganroth responded that yes, they have a garage. 
Commissioner Vater stated that in her mind, there was no way she could accept the shed in 

its current state. She then said she might be able to get more excited about the project if the 
metal roof was replaced by a shingled roof. 

 
Commissioner Joyce stated that if the applicant had gone through the normal channels for 
approval, she may have been able to get on board with the project. She then stated that she 

doesn’t want the Commission to seem vindictive or punitive, especially as we enter the 
period of work on the Historic Intensive Survey. Commissioner Joyce then stated that we 

should make it clear to the applicant that they can come back with an idea on how to better 
match the roof to architectural details in the surrounding area, the COA may be approved. 
 

Commissioner Vater stated that the Commission should deny the COA in order to get the 
applicant to attend the next meeting in order to negotiate.  Commissioner Blazer made a 

motion to approve the COA as written, subject to the conditions recommended by Staff. 
Commissioner Vater seconded the motion. The motion did not carry (0-6). 



 
 

6. Shawn Gillen – Certificate of Appropriateness 
COA-2015-25 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to COA-

2015-17 Review and consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace 
decorative scallops above the front porch of residential structure located at 709 Harrison 
Avenue. 

 
Mr. Morganroth read the staff report and recommendation.  

 
Commissioner Vater Made a motion to approve the COA as written, subject to the 
conditions recommended by Staff. Commissioner Vollmer second the motion. The motion 

carried unanimously (6-0).  
 

 
7. Report on Staff-Approved Certificates of Appropriateness & Activities Since Last 

Meeting 

 Mr. Morganroth announced that three COAs were approved by staff since the last meeting. 
The approved COAs included a privacy fence at 917 Church Street, a roof placement and 

gutter replacement at 816 Wisconsin Avenue, and a fence at 840 Park Avenue. 
 

8. Committee Reports 

A. Education and Outreach Committee: Commissioner Joyce spoke about John Glennan, a 
student at Beloit College, and his historic preservation project. She explained that he will 

be making a large poster for his project that shows what the Commission is doing and 
why.  

 

B. Grant Writing Committee: Mr. Morganroth stated that the City has retained a firm to 
work on the Historic Building Intensive Survey. He said the firm is Legacy Architecture 

out of Sheboygan, WI and that they have extensive experience with these types of 
surveys. 

 

 
C. Site Visit Committee: Commissioner Vollmer stated that he had no comments. 

 
9. Adjournment 

At 7:44 PM, Commissioner Joyce made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Commissioner 

Vater seconded the motion. The motion carried (6-0). 
 

 
Alex Morganroth, Planner 

 

 
 

 



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Meeting Date: August 18, 2015 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: COA-2015-32

Applicant: Devin Hanson Owner: Devin Hanson Location: 928 Bluff Street

Existing Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family
Residential

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Residential

Parcel Size: .1667 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Devin Hanson submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) to allow the placement of a shed at 928
Bluff Street. The shed was constructed without obtaining a COA, and the COA request presented at the July 21, 2015
meeting was denied.

Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Key Issues:
 The original COA request (COA-2015-24) was presented by Staff at the July 21, 2015 Landmarks Commission

meeting.
o The Commission voted unanimously (6-0) to deny the request for a COA to allow the shed.
o Commissioner concerns included the scale of the structure in context with other structures in the

neighborhood, as well as the metal roof that does not match the roof of the principle structure.
 The applicant was unaware that the installation of a shed required a Certificate of Appropriateness.
 At the time of application, the shed was scheduled for delivery on a flatbed truck the same day.
 Due to the difficulty and cost of postponing the delivery, Staff chose to allow a retroactive review of the COA

application, with the applicant’s understanding that the Landmark Commission’s decision may require them to
remove or alter the shed.

 The shed was constructed and delivered by Rock County Fence and Deck in the City of Beloit.
o Rock County Fence and Deck contracts with Mennonite craftsmen that build high quality portable

sheds/buildings.
 Shed Characteristics

o Shed footprint is approximately 10 x 16 feet. The shed height is approximately twelve (12) feet.
o Located near the rear property line and directly south of the detached garage.
o Constructed with wood side panels and aluminum roof (see attached photos for colors).
o Double lofted.
o Sits on crushed gravel bed with wood skids making it easy to be moved.
o Wood lattice installed around edges to keep small animals out.

 The roof of the shed is visible from Bluff Street.
 The attached COA Checklist evaluates this application against the General Review Criteria included in Section

32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.
 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in

evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application.
(1) Height: The shed is approximately 12 feet tall and the roof is visible from Bluff Street. Although the

height of the shed is significantly shorter than the principal structure, it is quite bulky when compared
to an average storage shed.

(2) Relationship of Building and Masses: Although the shed is relatively large, the structure is not a
permanent structure and therefor does not threaten the long-term integrity of the building and mass
relationships in the historic district.

(3) Architectural Details: The proposed colors and look of the shed will not negatively impact the original
character of this historic property. Owner has stated the intention to paint the shed to match the
house in the future.

 The proposed project meets the standards of Section 32.06(6)(b) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A



 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends neither denial or approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness
to have a shed at 928 Bluff Street, and will instead defer to the Landmarks Commission in order to make a determination
of appropriateness and to set the final conditions.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Location Map, Application, Intensive Survey Form, Manufacturers Information, Photos, COA Checklist



















Planning and Building Services Division
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609

For property located at: 928 Bluff Street

GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA
YES NO N/A

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use
for a property that requires alteration for use other than for its
originally intended purpose?

X

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character
of a building, structure or site? The removal or alteration of any
historic material or distinctive architectural features should be
avoided when possible.

X

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis,
rather than trying to create an earlier or later appearance?

X

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the
development of a building over time that may have acquired
significance in their own right?

X

Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic
features, or examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a
building, structure or site?

X

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated
architectural features, wherever possible? If replacement is
necessary, the new material should match the material being
replaced in composition, design color, texture and other visual
qualities.

X

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods
that will damage the surface of the historic building?

X

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve
archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project?

X

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed,
does this design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural
material and is the design compatible with the size, scale, color,
material and character of the property and neighborhood?

X

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner
that if such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future,
the essential form and integrity of the building would be
unimpaired?

The shed is on skids (not visible) and can moved or taken off
property very easily.

X

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT LANDMARKS COMMISSION

Meeting Date: August 18, 2015 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: COA-2015-27

Applicant: Derek Card, Imperial
Builders

Owner: Sam Watkins Location: 348 Euclid Avenue

Existing Zoning: R-1B Single-family
Residential

Existing Land Use: Single-family
Residential

Parcel Size: .2 Acres

Request Overview:
Derek Card, owner of Imperial Builders, submitted an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the replacement
of a second-story porch knee wall located on the residential structure located at 348 Euclid Avenue. Mr. Card submitted
the application on behalf of the owner of the subject property. This property is an Individual Historic Landmark, informally
known as the Stephen Slaymaker House. Section 32.05 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance grants the Landmarks
Commission the authority to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness prior to the construction, reconstruction, or exterior
alteration of any designed landmark, landmark site, or structure within an historic district.

Background Information:
The applicant emailed a COA application for a variety of projects, including the knee wall replacement and two staff
approved projects on July 1, 2015, the filing deadline for the July 21, 2015 meeting agenda. The applicant’s COA was not
processed due to the absence of the fee, pictures, and material specifications. The applicant was made aware that the
COA application would require review by the Landmarks Commission at the August 18, 2015 meeting and acknowledged
this requirement. On August 7, 2015, a Staff person drove by the structure at 348 Euclid Ave and observed that a new
railing had been constructed prior to the Landmarks Commission approving a COA, a violation of Section 32.06(4)(a) of
the Historic Preservation Ordinance. The applicant was notified of the violation immediately and acknowledged that the
work had been completed without a COA. Staff chose to defer a Notice of Violation or citation until after the issue is
brought to the attention of the Commissioners at the August 18, 2015 meeting.

Consistency with the Historic Preservation Ordinance and Strategic Plan:
Consideration of this request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Historic Preservation Ordinance.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Key Issues:
 The applicant had proposed the replacement of a second-story porch knee wall.

o The previous knee wall had deteriorated significantly due to rotting wood (see attached pictures).
o The wall also did not meet the Wisconsin State Building Code requirement that porch railings be at least

36 inches in height.
 Staff approved two projects that were also on the July 21, 2015 COA application including the replacement of the

black rubber roof on the porch and the aluminum soffit/fascia around the porch.
o A building permit was issued for the staff approved projects but not for the new porch railing.

 In the COA application for the knee wall replacement, the applicant had proposed replacing the existing wall with
a metal railing. The applicant originally stated the intention to use a black wrought iron railing. Staff asked for the
railing specifications/photos but never received them.

 After inspecting the house on August 7, 2015, Staff observed that the knee wall had already been removed and
replaced with a wooden railing (see attached photos of completed project).

o Instead of evaluating a wrought iron railing, as was the intended material according to the application, the
new wood railing was evaluated based on the criteria in the Historic Preservation Ordinance.

o The unpainted wood railing is approximately 36 inches in height and is made from treated pine.
 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance includes general review criteria to be used when

evaluating COA applications. The attached COA Checklist evaluates the completed work against the general
review criteria included in the Ordinance.

 Section 32.06(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance also establishes Specific Review Criteria to be used in
evaluating COA applications. The following criteria are relevant to this application.

o (1) Scale: Second story porch railings are required to be at least 36 inches. The railing meets this
requirement.

o (2) Architectural Details: The architectural style of the house, known as Stick Style, is defined by
decorative wood trim, exposed wood framing, and decorative structural elements. The railing and
ornamental balusters does not detract from the architectural integrity of the structure and may actually



compliment the Stick architecture of the structure.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness to replace the
second-story porch knee wall on the structure at 348 Euclid Ave, based on the standards and criteria contained in the
Historic Preservation Ordinance. Staff has chosen to not recommend any conditions due to the completed nature of the
project.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Photos, Location Map, Application, Intensive Survey Form, COA General Criteria Checklist



Streetview of 348 Euclid Avenue



Old Knee Wall



New Wood Railing

















Planning and Building Services Division
100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 Phone: (608) 364-6700 Fax: (608) 364-6609

For property located at: 348 Euclid Avenue

GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA
YES NO N/A

Has every reasonable effort been made to provide a compatible use for a
property that requires alteration for use other than for its originally intended
purpose?

X

Will the applicant retain distinguishing original qualities or character of a
building, structure or site? The removal or alteration of any historic material
or distinctive architectural features should be avoided when possible.

The original knee wall was removed due to rotting wood that according to
the applicant, was unable to be repaired. While not original, the new
railing barrier height will meet code, unlike the previous wall.

X

Is the applicant proposing alterations that have a historical basis, rather than
trying to create an earlier or later appearance?

X

Has the applicant recognized and respected changes in the development of a
building over time that may have acquired significance in their own right? X
Has the applicant treated with sensitivity distinctive stylistic features, or
examples of skilled craftsmanship that characterize a building, structure or
site?

X

Has the applicant repaired, rather than replaced, deteriorated architectural
features, wherever possible? If replacement is necessary, the new material
should match the material being replaced in composition, design color, texture
and other visual qualities.

The replacement barrier does not match the material in color, texture, or
general visual qualities. The old knee wall had the appearance of being an
extension of the exterior wall while the new barrier is a typical porch
railing with spindle balusters.

X

Has the applicant avoided sandblasting and other cleaning methods that will
damage the surface of the historic building?

X

Has the applicant made every possible effort to protect and preserve
archeological resources affected by or adjacent to any project?

X

If a contemporary design for alterations and additions is proposed, does this
design retain significant historical, architectural or cultural material and is the
design compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the
property and neighborhood?

X

Are new additions or alterations to buildings done in such a manner that if
such additions or alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential
form and integrity of the building would be unimpaired?

X

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS CHECKLIST


	8-18-15.pdf
	7-21-15.pdf
	COA-2015-32, 928 Bluff Street, Shed.pdf
	COA-2015-27, 348 Euclid Aveue, Knee Wall Replacement.pdf

